
GOVERNOR'S COUNCIL ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

 
Executive Committee Meeting 

 
LOCATION 

Governor's Council Conference Room 
3601 C Street 

Anchorage, Alaska 
Teleconference 

 
 

Meeting Date 
June 8, 2010 

 
 
 

Attendees: 
 

Eric Gebhart, Vice Chair 
Chris Saddler 
Debbie Kitelinger 
Julie Broyles 
Ric Nelson 

 
Staff: 
 

Millie Ryan, Executive Director 
Teresa Holt 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:   Paula DiPaolo 
       Peninsula Reporting 
 
 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             June 8, 2010  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

2 

Call to Order – 2:00 p.m. 
Roll Call 
 
INTRODUCTIONS, ANNOUNCEMENTS OR GOOD NEWS 
 
Millie Ryan stated that Art Arnold has given the Council money to get 
Project SEARCH off the ground in Alaska. 
 
Millie Ryan also stated that the Arc of Anchorage has some funds for a 
crisis center to do some remodeling of an existing facility to assist people 
experiencing behavioral issues.  Millie also stated that additional good 
news is that the deaf center planning funding is in the Governor’s budget, 
as is money for ABIN for resource navigation. 
 
APPROVE THE AGENDA 
 
Julie Broyles MOVED to approve the agenda.  Debbie Kitelinger 
SECONDED.  The agenda was APPROVED. 
 
APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE PAST MEETING 
 
Chris Saddler MOVED to approve the minutes from the previous meeting.  
Debbie Kitelinger SECONDED.  The meeting minutes were APPROVED as 
written. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Millie Ryan stated that the Council received a thank-you note from the 
United Way for Council staff helping them with tax preparation and earned 
income tax credit for people with low incomes. 
 
Millie also stated that they have been asked for a letter of support for a 
LEND Program planning grant that the Center for Human Development is 
coordinating.  Millie stated that this program would help with professional 
development here in Alaska around neurodevelopmental screenings and 
service delivery. 
 
REPORTS 
 
Executive Director’s Report 
 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             June 8, 2010  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

3 

Millie Ryan stated that she and Carrie Predeger attended a results based 
accountability visioning meeting and learned information that was very 
complimentary to the dashboard and scorecard process the Council has 
been involved in.  She stated that she would like to present more 
information about that at the October Council meeting. 
 
Millie stated that there was an Early Childhood Summit and an Early 
Childhood Mental Health Conference that were recently held and were well 
attended. 
 
Millie stated that she is continuing to work on WICHE, phase II for meeting 
the needs of people with challenging behaviors.  One of the things that is 
on the drawing board for WICHE is what is being called a center of 
excellence, which is very similar to what the Council proposed with ISIS. 
 
Millie Ryan stated that Melanie Leydon resigned, and they are in the 
process of recruiting for a new office assistant II. 
 
Millie explained that they had an all-day event for the people that attended 
the Region X Autism Summit.  They were able to get a good definition for 
what intensive autism intervention looks like. 
 
Other events that are coming up include: 
 

• Autism Summer Institute – Center for Human Development 
• Group meeting to discuss the supported employment action plan 
• Alaska Works Initiative strategic planning meeting. 

 
Millie Ryan explained that the Council and all the other beneficiary boards 
are making their recommendations to the Trust this year.  She stated that a 
big part of this process is making sure that everyone is aligned when they 
forward their recommendations. 
 
Millie also mentioned that Jerry Fuller, who has been the Department’s 
representative for the Council, has retired, and Millie will be asking the 
Department to assign the Council another representative. 
 
Chair’s Report  
 
Donna Swihart was not available at this meeting and no chair’s report was 
given. 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             June 8, 2010  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

4 

 
Committee Reports: 
 
Early Intervention Committee 
 
Teresa Holt stated that Duane Mayes participated in the Infant Learning 
Program PEC.  She also stated that the early childhood special ed listserv 
has 32 people now.  Teresa noted that she has also been recruited to be 
on the TACSEI planning committee. 
 
Teresa stated that one piece of correspondence that the EIC will be 
addressing at their next meeting is a forward of a letter from Senator 
Murkowski’s office talking about the ILP program in Alaska being at “needs 
improvement” status for the second year. 
 
Teresa Holt stated that the EIC has lost several members, so they are 
recruiting for new members.  She stated that she has already talked to a 
parent who has shown some interest in serving on the committee, but they 
are also looking for a preschool provider to fill a seat. 
 
Education Committee 
 
Julie Broyles stated that Chris Sturm attended their last meeting, and he 
presented some information on a pilot project that has been going on 
relating to PBS.  Julie stated that Chris shared some really interesting data 
that showed how well this program is working. 
 
Julie stated that they reviewed indicators 16 and 19 dealing with timely 
resolution of written complaints and mediations.  She stated that they also 
talked about the potential locations for their face-to-face meeting, and 
Barrow was the top choice. 
 
Teresa Holt added that after the Council meeting, they sent restraint and 
seclusion comments to Senators Begich and Murkowski.   
 
Teresa stated that the State Board of Education meeting is this Thursday 
and Friday and she will be attending that. 
 
Teresa also commented that it will be interesting if they go to Barrow 
because Cassie Wells is the special ed director there, and Cassie is 
considering joining the Council to replace John Owens. 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             June 8, 2010  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

5 

 
Legislative Committee 
 
Ric Nelson stated that the Legislative Committee met last Thursday and 
finished their work plan.  They also discussed creating a packet with talking 
points for speaking to candidates and legislators over the summer so if the 
candidates are elected, they will be familiar with the issues. 
 
DD Committee 
 
Millie Ryan stated that the focus for the DD Committee since the Council 
meeting has been getting comments together on the rates that were being 
proposed for the different service categories.  She stated that there were 
30 some odd pages of comments compiled. 
 
Millie stated that SDS will be submitting the new waiver application for all 
four of the waivers, and the Council will be very involved in giving 
comments on that. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
May 2010 Council Meeting Debriefing 
 
Eric Gebhart stated that his wife’s class was very excited about the 
opportunity to come to the meeting. 
 
Eric also suggested that as they hear information about the bylaws 
changes, that they tackle a little bit of it at each meeting. 
 
Teresa Holt stated that she heard from people that movie night should be 
cancelled because it’s just too many things to do.  Millie stated that they 
can just do the awards presentations during the meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
FY ‘12 – ‘13 RFR Process 
 
Millie Ryan stated that a meeting for the budget subcommittee is scheduled 
for June 30th.  Council members include:  Donna Swihart, Eric Gebhart, 
Julie Broyles, Chris Saddler and Debbie Kitelinger.  Ric Nelson asked to 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             June 8, 2010  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

6 

participate as a sixth alternate Council member.  Other members include 
Marcy Rein, Art Arnold, Erin Kinavey and Kris Green. 
 
Millie stated that this budget subcommittee meeting will be addressing 
fiscal years ’12 and ’13.  Millie stated that they can make a million dollars in 
recommendations to the Trust, and they can make 1.5 million dollars of 
recommendations for GF/MH.  Millie stated that the boards working 
together will make capital project requests. 
 
Millie Ryan stated that on August 11th they will have 45 minutes at the 
Trust Finance Committee meeting to make their recommendations.  The 
Trust will make their actual decisions during their September 8 – 10th 
meeting.  During that September meeting, the Council will have 30 minutes 
to update the Trust on their accomplishments and provide any policy 
recommendations. 
 
Out-of-State Travel Plan 
 
Millie Ryan directed the committee members to the out-of-state travel plan 
and explained the various conferences.  Some of them are required 
conferences and others are worthwhile conferences recommended by the 
other committees. 
 
Julie Broyles MOVED to approve the out-of-state travel plan as written.  
Chris Saddler SECONDED.  The plan was APPROVED as written.  Millie 
Ryan stated that she will monitor the expenditures carefully and bring back 
further information to the Executive Committee to review as needed. 
 
Executive Director’s Evaluation 
 
Millie Ryan stated that her plan is to purchase the software in July, and Eric 
Gebhart will meet with Millie when he is in town to go over it with her. 
 
October 2010 Council Meeting 
 
Millie Ryan reviewed the agenda outline with the committee members.  
Teresa Holt noted that the fall meeting will be October 13 through the 15th 
in Anchorage.  Millie highlighted agenda items which may include: 
 

• Committee repots 
• Scorecard and Dashboard discussion 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             June 8, 2010  
Special Education   Executive Committee Meeting 
 

7 

• First Lady presentation 
• Trust meeting follow-up discussion 
• Possible Midwest Academy planning around strategies 
• Advocacy training 
• New member orientation to include Roberts Rules of Order 
• SESA presentation and their role 
• Possible training, MTAR review follow up, extended committee 

reports and presentations, or a focus on a particular committee issue 
such as the early intervention eligibility change. 

 
TIME AND DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Millie Ryan stated that Donna Swihart asked if the Executive Committee 
could meet at 12:30 instead of 2:00.  The committee discussed it, but that 
time did not work out for many of the committee members.  Committee 
members seemed to agree that 3:00 worked out better, and they set their 
next meeting tentatively for July 16th at 3:00.  Millie Ryan will check with 
Donna Swihart to see if that time will work out for her.  Teresa Holt will also 
send an e-mail to people to see what time of the day would work out best 
for them on a more consistent basis. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Julie Broyles MOVED to adjourn the meeting.  Chris Saddler SECONDED.  
The Executive Committee meeting was adjourned at 3:17 p.m. 


